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| DECI SI ON

BURT, Menber: This case is before the Public Enpl oynent
Rel ati ons Board (PERB or Board) on exceptions filed by
Donald E. Kenpland (Kenpland or Charging Party) to the hearing
officer's proposed decision, and a response to those exceptions
filed by the Regents of the University of California
(University or Respondent). In that proposed decision, the
hearing officer found that Charging Party was unlawfully denied
uni on representation at a Septenber 6, 1979 neeting in
viol ation of subsection 3571(a) of the H gher Education

Enpl oyer - Enpl oyee Rel ations Act (HEERA or Act).! The hearing

The H gher Education Enpl oyer-Enpl oyee Rel ations Act



of ficer concluded that, although there was satisfactory
evidence to support the inference that Kenpland s request for
union representation on Septenber 6, 1979 was a partia
notivating factor in the University's decision to discharge
Kenpl and, his di scharge woul d have occurred in the absence of
his request for union representation. The Charging Party filed
numer ous exceptions alleging factual and |egal inadequacies in
the hearing officer's proposed decision. W have given careful
consideration to Charging Party's exceptions and find the
hearing officer's statenent of facts to be free of prejudicial
error,? and we adopt that portion of his decision, which is

i ncorporated by reference herein, as part of the decision of

t he Board.

is codified at Governnment Code section 3560 et seq. All
references are to the Governnment Code unl ess ot herw se
speci fi ed.

Subsection 3571(a) provides:

It shall be unlawful for the higher
educati on enpl oyer to:

(a) Inpose or threaten to inpose reprisals
on enpl oyees, to discrimnate or threaten to
di scrim nate agai nst enpl oyees, or otherw se
to interfere with, restrain, or coerce

enpl oyees because of their exercise of
rights guaranteed by this chapter.

2charging Party excepts to certain credibility
resolutions made by the hearing officer. A careful review of
the record denonstrates that the credibility resolutions nade
by the hearing officer are supported by the record as a whole,.
Santa Cara Unified School District (9/26/79) PERB Deci sion
No. 104.




The Board has carefully reviewed the record in light of
Charging Party's exceptions and Respondent's responses thereto,
and affirnms the hearing officer's findings of fact and
concl usions of law as nodified herein.

FACTUAL SUMVARY

Kenpl and was a University enployee for eight years. He was
an active nmenber in American Federation of State, County and
Muni ci pal Enpl oyees (AFSOME or Union), involved in Union
activities since 1973, and becanme AFSCME vice-president in
May 1979. In his capacity as a Union representative during
that entire period, he represented grievants in forma
grievances and informal resolutions, counseled enpl oyees, net
with the canpus personnel office and departnment heads and filed
grievances and admnistrative appeals on his own behalf. The
evi dence denonstrated that Respondent was aware of Kenpland's
Uni on activity.

VWhile it is clear fromthe record that Union
representational activities and pursuit of grievances took
Kenpl and away from his work site on occasion, it is equally
clear that Kenpland spent a considerable anount of tine away
fromhis work site, w thout advance notice or prior
aut hori zation, on nonwork-related activities, and frequently
‘responded with hostility if he were asked to account for his

wher eabouts or activities. Kenpland s supervisor,



Robert Barker, also conplained of Kenpland' s delaying the
performance of his assigned tasks.

Kenpl and was orally warned as early as 1978 during his
performance evaluation of the problemof his |eaving the work
site without notice or authorization. |[In 1978, Barker began to
go to his supervisor, Managenent Services Oficer Angela Pluth,
to conplain that he was having difficulty supervising Kenpland
and that Kenpland was spending too much time away from the job
on nonwork-related activities. It is uncontradicted that
during Kenpland's 1978 performance eval uation Barker warned him
orally about his spending too nuch tine away from the job.
Angela Pluth testified that other enployees also conplained to
her that Kenpland interrupted their work w th conversations or
by reading the policy nmanual for long periods of tine and
maki ng conmments that disturbed them

Bar ker continued to have problens with Kenpland, and in
January 1979, Pluth instructed Barker to nake notes on
Kenpl and' s behavi or, suggesting that sone form of docunentation
was necessary to support such a general conplaint.

Sanford Schane, the head of the |inguistics departnent, also

told Barker to docunent Kenpl and, though the record is unclear
as to when Schane so instructed Barker. Pluth also suggested
that Barker maintain priority lists of |aboratory projects so

that Kenpland would have clearly defined tasks with specific



deadlines.® Finally Pluth enrolled Barker in a supervisory
training course and advised Barker to speak to Kenpland about
curtailing nonjob-rel ated conversations.

Barker's notes cover the period of January through
August 22, 1979. These notes purport to docunent Kenpland's
tine spent away fromhis job duties and other problens. Barker
testified that he did not show Kenpland these notes nor did he
counsel Kenpland regarding these recorded incidents.

Li ngui stic Departnent Chairman Dr. Sanford Schane sent
Kenpland a nmeno in May 1979 acknow edgi ng Kenpland's right to
be involved in his representational activities and allow ng for
a reasonable anmobunt of time to do so, provided Kenpl and
obtained prior authorization |ike everyone else.® In the

meno, Kenpland was specifically adnmoni shed not to | eave the

3The last priority list was conpiled in June 1979 and
Barker testified that, although the itens could have been
conpleted within approximtely two weeks, half of the itens
merebnot done as of the date of Kenpland's termnation in
Cct ober.

*RX-18 represents the "regul ations governing the use of
university facilities and access to university enpl oyee
organi zations and their representatives.” Section |(D)
prohi bits enpl oyee organi zations and their representatives from
using University facilities and equi pnent, such as autonobiles,
conputers, projectors, tel ephones, office supplies,
phot ocopyi ng, reproduction equi pnment, and typewiters.
Section II(A) reasonably permts enployee organi zati ons and
their representatives to conduct enployee organi zati on business
in nonwork areas during the enployee's nonwork tine.
Section II(E) prohibits enployees from participating in and
conducting enployee organi zational business during their work
tine.



departnment without approval.®> In June 1979, the linguistic
departnment's technical staff was reorgani zed and Kenpland's
full-time recording technician position was replaced with a
hal f-time electronics position effective July 1. Kenpl and
accepted "involuntarily” this half-time position. On June 29,
1979, Kenpland was suspended for insubordination.® H's
suspension letter of July 2, 1979 warned Kenpland that he woul d
be subject to dismssal if his resistance and uncooperative
behavi or continued. Schane sent Kenpland three additional
menos in July, reiterating Kenpland' s right to take
adm nistrative leave with pay to engage in his representational
activities with prior authorization. Yet, Barker testified
t hat Kenpl and' s unacceptabl e behavi or conti nued.

On Septenber 6, 1979, Kenpland was called to a neeting with
Schane. In that neeting, Kenpland was handed a speci al
performance evaluation and a letter of warning which stated in

rel evant part:

°AFSCMVE Representative Kathy Esty testified at the
hearing that, 1n her capacity as a union representative, she
al ways requests perm ssion from her supervisor to |eave the
work area to perform Union representational activities.

®Charging Party's argument that Kenpland' s June 29, 1979
suspension occurred after the effective date of HEERA on
July 1, 1979 is unpersuasive. W therefore affirm the hearing
officer's conclusion that PERB does not have jurisdiction over
the alleged June 29, 1979 unfair practice because the
suspensi on took place prior to the effective date of HEERA
Pasadena Unified School District (5/12/77) EERB Decision
No. 16; U.S. Postal Service (1972) 200 NLRB 413 [81 LRRM 1533] ..




Since your last performance eval uation, your
wor k performance has becone unsatisfactory.

The work which you have been hired to do is
sinply not being done to your supervisor's
and ny satisfaction. On repeated occasions
you have spent the major part of your work
day in activities not directly related to
your job, such as frequently |eaving your
work area for periods of tinme, engaging in
the witing of menoranda and the readi ng of
PPM manual s, interfering with other people's
ability to work by engaging in unnecessary
di scussion and simlar disruptive
activities, being insubordinate to your
supervi sor, and using University equi pnent,
in particular the tel ephone and office
space, for personal and AFSCME busi ness.

In accordance with the letter | sent you on
July 17, 1979 | said | would grant you
reasonabl e periods of time to pursue the
gri evances that you have been filing. As
Departnent Chairman | have the right to
deci de what is reasonabl e based upon the
operational needs of this departnent. The
amount of tinme away from your work area has
been excessive, and especially now that you
are a half-tine enployee. If you wish to

| eave your work during office hours, your
supervi sor, Robert Barker, the Managenent
Services O ficer, Angela Pluth and/or | have
the right to ask you where you are going,
whom you intend to see, and the purpose of
your |eaving. W need not approve your
request. Your failure to provide an answer
or claimng that it is not the department's
busi ness is insubordinate behavior. You
were also explicitly told that absences had
to be made up as decided by your

supervisor. You have attenpted to nmake up
t hese absences at your own conveni ence.
This procedure is not acceptable to ne nor
is it in accordance with University policy.
You nust arrange wth your supervisor for
all make-up times at the departnent's
conveni ence.

| have no intention to interfere with an
enpl oyee's utilization of the grievance
procedure in a manner consistent with

7



Uni versity policy and procedure and this
departnent's operational needs. For that

reason, | outlined in ny letter of July 17
the procedure for dealing with your requests
that woul d be acceptable. In accordance

with University policy, enployees are
entitled to a reasonable anount of tinme off
in the resolution of grievances. You have
abused this right, not only in terns of
excessive tine spent away from your job and
your manner in making up absences, but al so
in on-job tine spent in such activities as
reading PPMs and witing and typing of
grievances and nenoranda. These activities
can and should be carried out on your own
time and ut|I|Z|ng your own

facilities

You have been hired by this departnment to
performa particular service as an

El ectroni cs Technician. Your work since
your |ast performance eval uati on has been
hi ghly unsatisfactory. In addition, your
nunerous activities have inpaired other
enpl oyees' ability to work. | have reached
the point that I will no longer tolerate
such behavior. If you again engage in any
of the conduct described in this letter and
if your performance does not inmediately

i mprove, you will be dism ssed.

In witing the evaluation, Schane relied upon Barker's
report to him Schane testified that the letter of warning was
based to a significant extent upon the information received
fromBarker. Qher than Schane's own know edge, he relied upon
docunentation from Barker and Language Librarian Linda Mirphy
regardi ng Kenpl and's com ngs and goi ngs.

Kenpl and requested and was denied Union representation at

this meeting.’

'NO party excepts to the hearing officer's concl usion



On Septenber 20, 1979, AFSCME Representative Patsy Healy
sent a letter to Schane requesting to neet and di scuss the
di sci plinary docunents of Septenber 6, 1979. Schane answered
that letter on Septenber 24, 1979 stating that he had al r eady
met with Kenpland on that matter on Septenber 6, and therefore
could see no useful purpose to be served by this requested
neeting. Schane testified at the hearing that he denied the
request because Kenpland's witten conmrent on the eval uation
had led himto expect a formal grievance to be filed, wth
anpl e opportunity for discussion in subsequent proceedings.
Healy testified that her letter of Septenber 20 was intended to

be the first step in the grievance process.

Kenpl and was absent from work for three days follow ng
Healy's letter to Schane. On Friday, Septenber 21, 1979,
Kenpl and called the departnent at approximately 12:00 noon and
reported to a student worker in the lab that he had a nedi cal
appoi ntnment. The student worker passed the nessage on to
Li nda Mur phy, who then reported the absence to Pl uth.

On Monday, Septenber 24, Kenpland again did not report for

work. This was the first day of the fall quarter, wusually a

that the University violated section 3571 (a) of the Act by
denyi ng Kenpl and's request for Union representation on
Septenber 6, 1979. Accordingly, we adopt that concl usion as
that of the Board. W note, however, that we rely upon

Robi nson v. State Personnel Board (1979) 97 Cal. App.3d 994 [159
Cal . Rptr. 222] as the applicable precedent.




very busy day for the departnment. Kenpland s alleged reporting
of this absence will be discussed, infra.

Kenpl and was absent a third tine on Tuesday, Septenber 25.
This time he phoned the departnent at 8:30 in the norning and
reported to Murphy that he was having car trouble. He placed a
second call around noon when he discovered that the trouble was
serious. At 2:30 p.m, Kenpland advised Mirphy that things
were | ooking better and he mght conme in. He did not report to
work at all that day. Murphy kept Pluth and Schane inforned of
Kenpl and's calls at various tines during the day. That sane
day Schane sent a telegram to Kenpland' s hone asking himto
report for work the follow ng day.

Kenpl and did conme in on Septenber 26 and was summoned to a
nmeeting wth Schane, Pluth and Barker. Prior to the neeting,
Schane had consulted with Cynthia Starkovsky, manager of
| abor/ enmpl oyee relations for the University since August 1979,
and had been advised by Starkovsky that Schane could inform
Kenpl and of the University's intention to dismss himand could
request that Kenpland not appear for work in the interim \Wen
Kenpl and arrived, Schane asked himto explain his three days of
absence. Kenpland answered that on Friday he had been ill and
had a nedi cal appointnment, and that he had called in and spoken
to a student worker. No one asked Kenpland for a doctor's
verification. He argued that his illness had continued through

Monday and that another call for the sanme illness was
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unnecessary. Pluth disagreed and testified that enpl oyees were
required to call in each day they are sick. Kenpland responded
that he had reported in only once per illness for years.

Kenpl and then discussed his car trouble on Tuesday and pointed
out that he had called in three tinmes. He nentioned the
difficulties of alternative nmeans of transportation in response
to a question by Schane. Schane then told Kenpland that he
consi dered the absences to be unexcused and that he planned to
issue a notice of intention to dismss. He asked Kenpl and to
give up his keys to the lab and to refrain fromcomng to work
in the neantine. Kenpland testified that Schane told him he
was fired. Schane denies that he made this remark. He then
left the neeting and went hone where he found the tel egram
Schane had sent the previous day.

After the neeting, Schane drafted.a notice of intention to
dismss and sent it to Kenpland's hone by registered mail. The
notice listed the evaluation and letter of warning of
Septenber 6 and the three unexcused absences as the bases of
Schane's decision. It also stated that Kenpland had the right
to respond orally or in witing within five days of his receipt
of the notice.

Kenpl and and AFSCVE Representative Patsy Healy net wth
Schane, Pluth and Starkovsky on Cctober 2, 1979 to discuss the
notice of intent to dismss. It was during this nmeeting that

Kenpl and clainmed for the first time that his wife had phoned

11



the departnment on Septenber 24 to report that Kenpland was
ill. Schane investigated Kenpland' s representation to
ascertain whether or not it was true and testified at the
hearing that he checked with and questioned everybody on the
asecond floor area that could conceivably have taken the phone
.nessage and ascertained that there had been no call. At the
hearing, Kenpland testified that his wife called in to report
his Septenber 24 illness. Ms. Kenpland also testified that
she called and spoke with Murphy. Mirphy, however, testified
that she did not receive a phone call fromMs. Kenpland and
that she questioned her staff and was informed that no one had
received a call fromMs. Kenpland.® Schane sent Kenpland a

notice of dism ssal on Cctober 3, 19709.

DI SCUSSI ON

The hearing officer based his |legal conclusions upon his

application of Carlsbad Unified School District (1/30/79) PERB

Deci sion No. 89. Since the issuance of the proposed deci sion
in the instant case, this Board has adopted the Novato test in
anal yzing di scrimnatory discharge cases brought under HEERA

subsection 3571(a). California.State University, Sacranento

(4/30/82) PERB Decision No. 211-H.

8The hearing officer credited the testinony of
Li nda Murphy over the testinmony of Mrs. Kenpland. - W find this
credibility resolution to be supported by the record as a
whol e. See footnote 2, supra.

12



Subsection 3571(a) expressly prohibits a higher education
enpl oyer from inposing reprisals against enployees because of
their exercise of rights guaranteed to them by the HEERA. In
Novato Unified School District (4/30/82) PERB Decision No. 210,

the Board held that a party alleging such a violation has the
burden of making a showing sufficient to denonstrate that
protected conduct was a "notivating factor” in the enployer's
decision to engage in the conduct of which the enpl oyee
conplains. Once this is established, the burden shifts to the
enpl oyer to denonstrate that it would have taken the sane
action even in the absence of the protected conduct. |

Kenpl and's Protected Activity

Kenpl and indi sputably was a Union activist, involved in
Union activities since 1973 and becom ng AFSCMVE vice president
in May 1979. In his capacity as a Union representative during
that tine period, he represented grievants in formal grievances
and informal resolutions, he counseled enpl oyees, he net with
t he canpus personnel office and departnent heads and he
obt ai ned signatures on a representation petition. These types
of unionrepresentational activities are clearly protected under
HEERA. Kenpland also filed grievances and adm nistrative
appeal s on his own behalf relating to his layoff and rehire,
his suspension, his rights under the Public Records Act, and
release tine. Kenpland al so exercised protected rights when he

requested Union representation at the meeting of Septenber 6,

13



1979. This Board in Carlsbad recognized that direct proof of
notivation is rarely poSsibIe and concl uded that unl awf ul
notive can be established and inferred fromthe record as a

whol e. Carlsbad, supra, at p. 11; Republic Aviation Corp. V.

NLRB (1945) 324 U.S. 793 [16 LRRM 620]; Radio Oficer's Onion

v. NLRB (1954) 347 U.S. 17 [33 LRRM 2417]. W find both the
timng of Kenpland' s discharge in relation to his participation
in protected activity as well as the University's docunmentation
of Kenpland's activities coupled with Barker's failure to show
Kenpl and the notes or counsel Kenpland regarding the recorded
incidents to be circunstantial evidence of unlawful notive.

The Charging Party has thus net its burden to present

sufficient evidence to raise the inference that Kenpland' s
protected activity, specifically his exercise of his Union
representational activities and his request for Union
representation at the Septenber 6, 1979 neeting, a notivating
factor in the University's decision to discharge Kenpland. The
burden now shifts to the University to denonstrate that it
woul d have taken the same action even in the absence of the

protected conduct.

Kenpl and woul d have been fired even in the absence of his
protected conduct.

VWiile it is clear from the record that Union
representational activities pursuant to grievances took

Kenpl and away from his work site on occasion, it is equally
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clear that Kenpland spent a considerable anount of time away
fromhis work site wi thout advance notice or prior
aut hori zation on nonwork-related activities, some of which were
Union activities, and responded with hostility whenever he was
asked to account for his whereabouts or activities. Kenpland' s
supervi sor, Barker, also conplained of Kenpland s del aying the
performance of his assigned tasks. Wiile the record indicates
a less than favorable relationship between Barker and Kenpl and,
Kenpl and' s "insubordi nati on” appeared to be the source of the
pr obl em

Kenpl and was warned orally as early as 1978 during his
performance eval uation of the problemof his |eaving the work
site without notice or authorization. The testinony of
Respondent’'s wi tnesses and record evidence indicated that the
[ inguistic departnent conplained of Kenpland' s frequent
di sappearances and engagenent in nonwork activities, not about
his right to engage in authorized Union representational
activities. Schane sent Kenpland a meno as early as May 1979
acknow edgi ng Kenpland's right to be involved in his
representational activities and allowng for a reasonable
amount of time to do so. However, Kenpland was expected to
obtain prior authorization |like everyone else and was
specifically adnoni shed not to |eave the departnent w thout
~approval . Kenpland's July 2, 1979 suspension for

i nsubordi nati on warned him that he would be subject to

15



dismssal if his resistance and uncooperative behavior
continued. Schane sent Kenpland three additional menos in
July, reiterating Kenpland's right to take adm nistrative |eave
with pay to engage in his representational activities with
prior authorization, yet Barker testified that Kenpland' s
unaccept abl e behavi or conti nued.

On Septenber 6, 1979, Kenpland received his letter of
warni ng and special performance eval uation, which again
adnoni shed Kenpl and for his insubordinate behavior and refusal
to obtain prior approval for admnistrative |eave in accordance
with University policy and procedures. This letter warned of
dism ssal if Kenpland' s performance did not inmmediately inprove..

Kenpl and' s three-day absence on Septenber 21, 24 and 25,
1979 was determned by the University to be unauthorized and
further evidence of Kenpland' s insubordination. The University
did not credit Kenpland' s explanations for the absences.
Kenpl and' s change of story regarding the reporting of his
Sept enber 24 absence provided anple basis for the University's
conclusion. The University's stated reasons enunerated in the
notice of intention to dismss included the Septenber 6, 1979
letter of warning and performance evaluation as well as the
events of Septenber 21, 24 and 25, 1979. The notice stated
that the three-day absence clearly denonstrated Kenpland' s
failure to correct the inadequate performance outlined in the

letter of warning and performance eval uation.
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It is clear that Kenpland repeatedly refused to follow
Uni versity procedures authorizing himto engage in his
representational activities,® that he spent excessive tine
away fromhis work, and that he refused to be held accountable
for his whereabouts or his behavior. Thus, we find that the
University has met its burden to denonstrate that it would have
fired Kenpland in the absence of his protected conduct.
| ndeed, the University repeatedly made it abundantly clear that
it had no intention of interfering with Kenpland s Union
activities, provided that they were conducted in a manner
consistent with University policy. Clearly, Kenpland would
have been fired even in the absence of his protected conduct
for insubordination.® Accordingly, the Union's exceptions

are di sm ssed.

AFSCME does not contend that Kenpland observed
University policy in his conduct of Union activities, nor that
the policy itself was unreasonable.

Pvhile the University may have denonstrated poor
managenent practices, our inquiry does not enconpass the
justness of the discharge on that basis, where the facts do not
rai se discrimnatory notives on the part of nmanagenent. In
Mor el and El enentary School District (7/27/82) PERB Decision
No. 227, we stated at p. 15:

Lack of 'just cause' is neverthel ess not
synonynous with anti-union aninus. By
itself, it does not permt such a finding.
Di sciplinary action may be w thout just
cause where it is based on any of a host of
i mproper or unlawful considerations which
bear no relation to matters contenplated by

17



ORDER

Upon the foregoing findings of fact and concl usions of | aw,
and the entire record in this case, the Public Enpl oynent
Rel ati ons Board ORDERS that the charge brought by
Donal d E. Kenpl and agai nst the Regents of the University of
California, Case No. LA-CE-13-H is DI SM SSED, except as to that
portion thereof alleging that the University violated
subsecti on 3571(a) of the HEERA by denying Union representation
to Donal d Kenpl and on Septenber 6, 1979.

The hearing officer's decision and order with respect to
said allegations, not having been excepted to, is final as to
the parties. Therefore, we adopt the order and conpliance
requirements set forth in the hearing officer's order and

noti ce.

Chai rperson duck and Menber Morgenstern joined in this
Deci si on.

EERA and which this Board is therefore
wi t hout power to renedy.

Thus, the Union bears the burden of producing evidence
which would permt the conclusion that the discharge here was
an act of enployer retaliation against Kenpland for his
organi zing efforts.

18



PUBLI C EMPLOYMENT RELATI ONS BQOARD
OF THE STATE OF CALI FORNI A

DONALD E. KEMPLAND,
_ Unfair Practice

Charging Party, Case No. LA-CE-13-H

V.

THE REGENTS OF THE UNI VERSI TY 'PROPCSED DECI S| ON
OF CALI FORNI A,
(8/5/81)

Respondent. .

Appear ances; Christopher L. Ashcraft, Attorney (Thistle,
Krinsky, Tdler & Lanbert) for Charging Party, Donald E
Kenpl and; Susan M Thomas, Attorney for The Regents of the
University of California.

Bef ore Kenneth A. Perea, Hearing O ficer.

PROCEDURAL HI STORY

On February 25, 1980, Charging Party, Donald E. Kenpl and,
filed an unfair practice charge against the Regents of the
University of California (hereafter University). The charge
al l eged that the University had violated section 3571(a) of the
H gher Educati on Enpl oyer- Enpl oyee Rel ations Act (hereafter
HEERA! in that it first suspended and |ater discharged

M . Kenpland because of his union-position, activities and

request for union representation at neetings with his supervi sors.

Gover nment Code section 3560 et seq. All statutory
references are to the California Governnent Code unl ess
ot herwi se specified.



The University answered on March 17, 1980. The parties were
unable to resolve the matter at an informal conference held on
March 21. The charge was anended on June 17 and the answer was
anended on July 2 and again on Novenber 24, 1980.

The formal hearing was originally set for Septenber, but
was continued at the request of both parties. The hearing took
pl ace at San Di ego, California, on Decenbef 10-12, and 15-16
1980.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

A Events Prior to July 1, 1979

Charging Party Donal d Kenpland was first enployed by the
~University at its San Diego canpus in Septenber, 1971. In
April, 1973, he began work in fhe Depart ment of Linguistics
(hereafter Departnent) as a recording technician in the

| | anguage | aboratory (hereafter | ab).

In the follow ng years, M. Kenpland becane an active
menber of the California State Enpl oyees' Association
(hereafter CSEA) and of the Anerican Federation of State,
County, and Munici pal Enpl oyees (hereafter AFSCME). He served
as president of CSEA, Chapter 104 from 1973 to 1975. In 1976
he became a steward for AFSCME, Local 2068, and he was el ected

vice-president of the same local in 1979.

Robert Barker becane Kenpl and's supervisor ih t he ]ab in
1976. In the followng three years, ponsiderable friction
devel oped between Kenpland and Barker. Mich of this friction
arose from Barker's perception that Kenpland was slow in
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conpl eti ng assignnents and wés-spending too nmuch tinme on
activities unrelated to his job. Barker objected that he often
observed Kenpland working on witten naterial unrelated to lab
busi ness and that Kenpland frequently gave little or no advance
notice before leaving the lab during working hours.

Dr. Sanford Schane, chairman of the Departnent,‘first
became involved with the above-stated situation in the lab in
April, 1979. Barker assigned Kenpland to adjust his work
schedul e by half an hour on three dates to accommpdate certain
schedul ed video tape showi ngs. When Kenpland resisted, he was
called to a neeting with Angela Pluth, a managenent services
officer in the Departnent. A series of nmenos ensued bet ween
Pluth and Kenpland. On April 12 Schane sent a neno to Kenpl and
stating that failure to work the adjusted schedule would result
in corrective action. Kenpland subsequently filed for
adm ni strative review of the schedul e adjustnment under a
Uni versity procedure. Schane's response to the filing
reasserted the need to adjust Kenpland's hours on the three
- occasions and set forth the chairman's views on break time and
on the requirenent of Departnent approval to |eave the work
pl ace. |

On June 1, 1979, Schane sent to the University's Staff
Personnel Office a proposal to reorganize the Department's
technical staff. Because of shifting departnental needs,

‘Schane sought to increase the position of computer progranmmrer



: fron1ha|f-tihe to full-time and to replace the full-tine
recording technician with a half-fine el ectronics technician.
Accordi ngly, Schane notffied Kenpl and on June 15 that his
position of recording technician would be elimnated as of -
"June 30 and that he would be laid off with the right of
preferential rehire for twenty-four nonths. Schane al so

of fered Kenpland the new position of electronics technician to
be created July 1. On June 20, Kenpland indicated his
"involuntary acceptance" of the half-tinme position.

On June 29, Pluth called Kenpland in the lab and asked him
to cone to the Departnent offices to sign the necessary forns
for his layoff and rehire. Kenpland indicated that he did not
wish to come without a union representative. Schane also
called and explained that the neeting did not require
representation because it did not involve discipline, but
Kenpl and repeated his desire to be represented. Sone tine
| ater, Kenpland cane to the Departnent offices and net with
Pluth and Schane. Schane handed himthe forns to be signed
along wth an envel ope containing a neno about his new worKking
hours. Kenpland took these and started to |eave the room but
Schane insisted that the papers were not to |leave the office.
Kenpl and returned them and |eft w thout signing.

Later in the day, Kenpland returned with a draft of a
letter confirmng his continuing preferential rehire rights.

He asked Schane to sign this, but Schane refused. When



Kenpl and again declined to-accept the nehn about his working
hours, Schane suspended himand told himto return the
followng Thursday to be told when he could resune worKk.

B. The One Wek Suspension of June 29 and Events of the Sumrer
of 1979

On July 2, Schane sent Kenpland a letter informng himthat
his suspension woul d be for one week énd that the reasoh was
i nsubordi nation in delaying his appearance in the office and
refusing to cooperate with the processing of standard forns.
The letter also indicated that further uncooperative behavi or
could result in dismssal.

During the sumrer nonths, Kenpland worked as an el ectronics
technician on a four-hour afternoon shift. He and Barker
continued to argue in the |ab about the use of work tine for
out si de aptivities. In late July, Schane sent Kenpland three
menos reiterating the need to secure approval before taking any
"adm nistrative |eave" fromthe work place. Schane further
stated that he would grant one hour per week with pay for
grievance resolutions. In addition, Kenpland filed grievances
during the summer concerning his layoff and suspensioh and

filed adm nistrative appeals on other subjects.-

C. The Letter of Warning and Perfornmance Eval uation of
~Septenber 6 -

On Septenber 6, Kenpland went to the Departnent offices for
a nmeeting to which he had been sumoned the previous day. He
was acconpani ed by Patsy Heal ey, his AFSCMVE uni on
representative. Schane, who was standing in the doorway,
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refused to permt Fbaley.fo enter on the_grounds that the
purpose of the neeting was sinply to present Kenpland with a
per f or mance evajuation and a letter of warning. Kenpland and
Heal ey stepped aside for a brief discussion and then tried
again to gain entry for Healey. When this second attenpt
failed, Kenpland went alone to neet with Schane, Pluth and
Barker. He received the evaluation, which Schane and Bar ker
had prepared, and the letter of warning by Schane. Kenpl and
"did not comment orally, although he had the opportunity to do
so and his comments woul d have been considered by Barker and
Schane, but he did wite on the evaluation that he disagreed
with its allegations of unsatisfactory perfornmance and woul d
~pursue the matter through University procedures.

On Septenber 20, Healey wote to Schane to request a
meeting for purposes of "informal review' of the warning and
eval uation. Schane denied the request on the grounds that he
had met with Kenpland on Septenber 6 and that there was no
reason for further discussion. He testified at the hearing
that he denied the request because Kenpland's witten conment
on the evaluation had led himto expect a formal grievance to
be filed, with anple opportunity for discussion in subsequent
proceedi ngs. Healey testified that her letter of Septenber 20
“was intended to be the first step in the grievance process.

D. The Events of Septenber 21, 24 and 25

. Kenpl and was absent fromwork on Friday, Septenber 21. He



called the Departnent at approxinately 12:00 noon and reported
to a student worker in the lab that he had a medical -
appoi ntnment. The student worker passed the nessage on to
| anguage |ibrarian Linda Murphy, who then reported the absence
to Pluth.
On anday; Sept enber 24, Kehpland again did not report for
work. This was the first day of the fall quarter, usually a
very busy day for the Departnent. Kenpland testified that his
wife called into report that he was ill. Ms. Kenpland also
testified that she called and spoke with Mirphy. However,
Mur phy's testinony was that she did not receive such a phone
call. It is concluded that the testinony of Linda Mirphy nust
be credited over the testinony of Mrs. Kenpland due to Ms.
Kenpland's interest in the outcone of this case,
Ms. Keﬁpland's equi vocal testinnny regardi ng her tel ephone
conversation with Linda Mirphy of Septenber 24, and the fact
that al though asked to explain his absence as early as

Sept enber 26, 1979 M. Kenpland did not nention his wife's
| phone call to anyone in the Departnent until October 2. There is
an inconsistency in M. Kenpland's testinony on this latter point
.in t hat Kenpl and explained his failure to nention his wife's
phone call to anyone in the Departnent until Cctober 2 on the
basi's that he did not - know she had called until after -Septenber

26. However, in earlier testinony, Kenpland testified that his



- wife had tQId hin1of_her call_fo the Department on Septenber
- 24. For the foregoing reasons, the testinony of N¢sl Kenpfand
that she called the Departnment on Septenber 24 is not credited.
Kenpl and was absent .a third tine on Septenber 25. This
time he phoned the Departnént early in the nbrning and reported
to Murphy that he was having car trouble. He placed a second
cal | é few hours later when he discovered thét the troubl e was
serious. By md-afternoon he had solved the problem and he
called to tell Murphy he mght cone in. He did not report to
work at all that day. Murphy kept Pluth and Schane inforned of
Kenpl and's calls at various tines dﬁring the day. That sane
day Schane sent a telegramto Kenpland's hone asking himto
report for.mork the foll ow ng day.

"E. The Notice of Dismssal Effective COctober 13, 1979

Kenpl and did cone in on Septenber 26 and was summobned to a
nmeeting with Schane, Pluth, and Barker. Prior to the neeting,
Schane had consulted with Cynt hia Starkovsky, manager of
| abor/ enpl oyee relations for the University, and had been
advi sed by her that he could inform Kenpland that he woul d be
disnfssed and could requést that Kenpland not appear for work
in the interim \Wen Kenpland arrived, Schane asked himto
explain his_three.days of absence. Kenpland answered that on
Friday he had been ill and had a medical appointnent, and that
he had call ed in.and spoken to a student worker. He argued

that his illness had continued through Monday and that anot her

call for the same illness was unnecessary. Pluth disagreed and

8



said that enployees should call in each day they are sick.
Kenpl and then discussed his car trouble on Tuesday and pointed
out that he had called in three tinmes. He nentioned the
difficulties of alternative nmeans of -transportation in response
to a.question by Schane. Schane then told Kenpland that he
considered the absences to be inexcusable and that he planned
to issue a notice of intention to dismss. He asked Kenpl and
to give up his keys to the lab and to refrain fromcomng to
work in the neantinme. Kenpland requested and was given a
feceipt'for the keys. He then left the neeting and wént home,
where he found the tel egram Schane had sent the previous day.

After the nmeeting, Schane drafted a notice of intention to
disniss and sent it to.Keanand's honme by registered mail. .Thé
notice listed the evaluation and letter of warning of Septenber
6 and the three unexcused absences as the bases of Schane's
decision. It also stated that Kenpland had the right to
respond orally or in witing wwthin five days of his receipt of
the noti ce.

The follow ng day, Septenber 27, Kenpland went to the
Departnent offices to examine his personnel file. He was
acconpani ed by Kathy Esty, a union representative. Pluth nmade
the file available, and Kenpland and Esty prpceeded to go
.through and initial the various documents therefn. In-the file
Kenpl and found a series of notes about his activities in the

lab with an indication that fhey had beén t aken by Bar ker over



a period of several nonths. He requested a copy of them and
“Pluth gave them to another enployee to xerox and presented the
copi es to Kenpl and.

Pluth testified that Kenpland also found a copy of the
notice Qf intention to disnmss in the file and requested end
. received a copy of it. Kenpland testified that he did not see
a copy of the notice in the file and did not receive one that
day.

The original notice, sent by registered nmail on
Sept ember 26, was not received by Kenpland until Cctober 1. On
~that date, Kenpland took the notice to Heal ey, who drafted a
letter to Schane to request a nmeeting. This Ietfer was
hand-del i vered by Kenpland the sane day.

On Cctober 2, in response to Healey's letter, Pluth tried
to contact both Kenpland and Heal ey by phone. Healey returned
her call in the afternoon. Pluth informed Healey that if a
neeting was desired it would have to be held that day because
five days had el apsed since Kenpland had inspected his
personnel file and received a copy of the notice. Healey
protested that fhis woul d not provide adequate tine for
preparation and that the five days should have started on
Cctober 1, when Kenpl and received the mai | ed noti ce.
Nevert hel ess, she contacted Kenpland.and agreed to neet at the
Departnenf officee. Kenpl and errfved first and fbund-Schahe,

Pluth, and Starkovsky waiting. Kenpland took Starkovsky aside
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and requested an extension of the five-day period, but she
declined to grant it. \When Heal ey arrived; t he neeting began.
It was during this meeting that Kenpland first nentioned that
his wife had phoned the Department on Septenber 24. |

Schane sent Kenpland a notice of dismssal on October 3,
the day followng their last meeting. Kenpland received the
notice two days later and protested in witing that his
dism ssal was in violation of University procedure, in part
because of the hasty manner in which the neeting of October 2
had been called. Kenpland' s di sm ssal bééane effective oh
October 13, 1979.

1 SSUES

Did the University violate section 3571(a) by:

(a) Denying the Charging Pafty's request for union
representation on June 29, 1979, and by subsequently suspending him
from enpl oyment ?

(b) Denying the Charging Party's request for union

representation at the neeting of Septenber 6, 1979?

(c) Calling the neeting of October 2, 1979, at such a tine
that Charging Party could not be represented by an attorney?
(d) Discharging the Charging Party from enpl oyment ?

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW AND DI SCUSSI ON

- 1. The One Week Suspension of June 29

- The Charging Party alleges that the Uni versity violated

section 3571(a) by denying his request for union representation_‘ﬂ
. 11



and by subsequently suspending him from enpl oynent. Section
3571(a) makes it unlawful for a higher education enployer to:

| npose or threaten to inpose reprisals on

enpl oyees, to discrimnate or threaten to

di scri m nate agai nst enpl oyees, or otherw se

to interfere with, restrain, or coerce

enpl oyees because of their exercise of

rights guaranteed by this chapter.

The University raises the following three procedural
defenses to this allegation in addition to its substantive
response: (1) the allegation is based on events which are
outside the jurisdiction of the Public Enploynment Rel ations
Board (hereafter PERB) because they occurred prior to the
effective date of HEERA; (2) PERB should defer to an
arbitrator's award concerning the subject matter of the
all egation; and (3) the charge was not filed within six nonths
after the alleged violations and is therefore barred by the
statute of limitations.

The record discloses that on June 29, 1979, the Charging
Party was called to the EEpartnEni offices to sign forns
“pertaining to his layoff and rehire and to be notified in
witing about his new working hours. He requested and was
deni ed uni on representatiqn and was told on the sanme day that
he was suspended from enploynent. On July 2, Departnent

Chai rman Schane sent hima letter which confirned the

suspensi on and stated the reasons for it.
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The effective date of HEERA was, July 1, 1979. In Petrone
~v. Pasadena Unified School District (5/12/77)' EERB Deci si on No.

16,2 the PERB sustained the dismissal of an unfair practice
charge where all of the enployerfs'alleged actions occurred
prior to the effective date of the Educational Enploynent

Rel ations Act, Governnment Code section 3540 et seq. containing

| anguage sinmilar to section 3571(a). Since the denial of
representation and the suspension both occurred on

June 29, 1979, two days before HEERA becane operative, the

Uni versity argues that they cannot form the basis of an unfair
practice charge. The Charging Party responds with the claim
that the suspension was not efféctive under University
regulations until July 2, when Dr. Schane gave witten notice
of it. But assum ng arguendo that Charging Party's claimis
correct, it still cannot be said that the Charging Party was
engaged in the exercise of protected rights under HEERA when he
requested union representation on June 29. Though such rights
may arguably have existed under other |egislation enforceable
~in another forum HEERA granted no rights to enployees prior to
July 1, 1979. The University therefore did nbt vi ol at e HEERA

by denying a request for representation on June 29 or by

°’See also U.S. Postal Service (1972) 200 NLRB No. 56 [81
LRRM 1533], in which the National Labor Rel ations Board
(hereafter NLRB) dism ssed a conplaint based on events
occurring before it acquired jurisdiction over the Posta
Service through the Postal Reorganization Act.
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al | egedly suspending the Charging Party because of -that request
subsequent | y.

Since the University's actions under these facts cannot
formthe basis of an unfair practice charge, no violation of
section 3571(a) is found and it is unnecessary to consider the
Uni versity's two remaining defenses of deferral to arbitration
and the statute of limtations, whet her the Charging Party
woul d have had a right to union representation under simlar
circunmstances after July 1, 1979 or whether the suspension was
in fact a reprisal for said request.

- 2. Union Representation at the Meeting of Septenber 6

The Charging Party alleges that the University viol ated
section 3571(a) by denying his request for union representation
at the neeting of Septenber 6, 1979. He clains that his
request was an exercise of his rights under section 3565, which
provi des that:

H gher education enpl oyees shall have the
right to form join and participate in the
activities of enployee organizations of
their own choosing for the purpose of
representation on all matters of

enpl oyer -enpl oyee relations and for the
pur pose of neeting and conferring. Hi gher
educati on enpl oyees shall also have the
right to refuse to join enployee

organi zations or to participate in the
activities of these organizations subject to
t he organi zational security provision
perm ssi bl e under this chapter.

In SEIU v. Marin Community College D strict (11/19/80) PERB

Deci sion No. 145, the PERB found a right to representati on by
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an enpl oyee organi zation in the. parallel |anguage  of section
3543 of the Educationaf Enpldynent Relafions Act (hereafter
EERA).® The Board cited with approval the anal ogous private:
sector right enunciated by the U S. Supreme Court in NLRB v. J.

—_—

Wei ngarten, Inc. (1975) 420 U.S. 251 [88 LRRM 2689] .

Wei ngarten upheld the right of an enpl oyee to union

representati on upon request at an investigatory interview which
he reasonably believes mght result in disciplinary action.
This right was based on the NLRB's interpretation of the
"concerted activities" clause of section 7 of the National
Labor . Rel ati ons Act (hereafter NLRA)“* to include union

assi stance in such a situation. The Court reasoned that the
union representative would safeguard the interests of other

uni on menbers by assuring that the enployer does not inpose

puni shment unjustly.

In recent cases both the NLRB and the federal courts have
enphasi zed the elenment of the investigatory interview in

determ ning when the Wingarten right attaches. In Baton Rouge

Water Works (1979) 246 NLRB No. 161 [103 LRRM 1056], the NLRB

held that when an enployer has reached a final decision to
i npose discipline, and calls a neeting nerely to informthe
enpl oyee of that decision, there is no right to union

representation. The right attaches only when the enployer seeks

3Gov. Code sec. 3540 et seq.

429 U.S.C. sec. 157.
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facts or adm ssions fromthe enpl oyee, either to help himreach
. a decision or to support a decision already nade. In

Anchortank, Inc. v. NLRB (5th Cir. 1980) 104 LRRM 2689, the

Court of Appeals apprOVed the hol ding of Baton Rouge and

clarified the rationale further. Wen the enployer sinply
announces discipline and does not seek information, there is no
need for concerted activity to protect the enployee from
intimdation or to guard agai nst an unjust deci sion-making
precedent. Once the decision is final, it is of concern only
to the disciplined enployee hinself.

California courts have |ikew se had the opportunity to
consi der the question of whether certain public enployees are
entitled to union representation at nmeetings with their

enployer. In Civil Service Association v. Cty and County of

San_Francisco (1978) 22 Cal.3d.552 [150 Cal .Rptr. 129, 586 P.2d

162] , the Supreme Court held that the Meyers-M i as-Brown Act
granted to |ocal governnmental enployees the right, upon
request, to participation of a union representative during an
investigatory interview held prior to the inposition of a

short-term suspension. Furthernore, in Robinson v. State

Personnel Board 97 Cal.App.3d 994 [159 Cal.Rptr. 222], the

Court of Appeal concluded that a state enployee has a right to
union representation, at a nmeeting with his superiors held with
~a significant purpose to investigate facts to support

di sciplinary action and may not be disciplined for attenpted
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| exercise of that right. In reaching its result, the Court of
Appeal held that the stUdied congruence of sections 3503-3504
and 3528-3529 leads to the conclusion that the meani ng

attributed by Givil Service Association, supra, nust also be

attributed to the State Enployee Organizations Act and that fhe
rulings of NLRB v. J. Weingarten, Inc. (1975) 420 U. S. 251 [43

L.Ed.2d 171, 95 S.Ct. 959] and its progeny are persuasive in
interpreting sections 3528 and 3529.

In the present case, the record shows that Depart nent
Chai rman Schane called the Charging Party to the Departnment
offices to present himwith a letter of warning and a
performance eval uation, both already prepared. Wen the
Charging Party arrived, Schane infornmed himof the purpose of

the meeting and denied entry to his representative.

Exami nation of the above-cited California precedent,

together with Weingarten and its progeny, provides significant

gui dance in determ ning whether Kenpland was entitled to union
representation during the Septenber.6, 1979 neeting with his
superiors. Had the University held said neeting for the sole
purpose of presenting its letter of warning dated Septenber 6
it could well be argued that Kenpland was not entitled to union

representati on since under the rationale of Anchortank, Inc.,

and Baton Rouge when the enployer sinply announces discipline

and does not seek information there is no need for union
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representation at the nmeeting to protect the enployee from
intimdation or to guard agai nst an unjust deci sion-nmaking
precedent. However, under the facts of this case, in addition
to presenting the letter of warning, the University presented
Kenpl and wi th a performance eval uation in support thereof

speci fically warning Kenpland that, "If you again engage in any
of the conduct described above [spending major parts of the

wor kday on activities unrelated to his job, interfering with other
person's ability to work, insubordination and unauthorized use
of University equi pnent for personal and AFSCME busi ness] and
if your performance does not immediately inprove, you will be

di sm ssed. "

Since the penalty of discharge was clearly contenplated in
t he performance eval uati on of Septenber 6, 1979, the
~performance eval uati on contained space for "Enployee Comments, "
Uni versity policy requires discussions with enployees to reach
under st andi ngs on duties, responsibilities, and objectives as
part of performance eval uati ons, and Barker and Schane woul d
have considered any comments Kenpland offered and coul d have
changed his eval uation based upon those conmments, is concl uded
under the facts of this case that Charging Party was entitled to

uni on representation.
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This is not to hold that all routine performance eval uations

are subject to union representation. This holding is limted to
t hose situations where a performance eval uati on which includes
the opportunity for discussions with the enployee to reach under-
standing on duties, responsibilities, and objectives is prepared
to serve as a warning of contenplated disciplinary action should

the enpl oyee's performance not inprove.

3. Representation by Attorney on Cctober 2

The Chafging Party fﬁrther.alleges that the University
violated section 3571(a) by the manner in which it called and
conducted the neeting of COctober 2, 1979. The record discloses
that Angela Pluth arranged the neeting by phone on Cctober 2,
in response to a letter witten the previous day by union
representati ve Patsy Heal ey. The University's argunent is that
the neeting had to take place on or before Cctober 2 because
the Charging Party had received the notice of intention to
dismss five days earlfer. The Chafging Party argues thaf he
shoul d have had an opportunity to respond to the notice within

five days after he received a copy in the mail. Since he

"received the nmailed copy on Cctober 1, he clains he had until

OCctober 6 to neet with his superiors. The Charging Party
further argues that because the neeting was so hastily called,

he was unable to be represented by his attorney and had to



settle for a union representative. He also alleges that the
meeting was conducted in violation of various Universify
policies, including a requirenment that the University discl ose
the information it used in reaching its decision to disniss him,
Wth respect to the Charging.Party's inability to be |
represented by an attorney, it should first be noted that the
record contains no evidence that the Charging Party ekpressed'a
desire for such representation at any time on October 2. But
even if he had done so, he would not have been exercising any
ri ght guaranteed by HEERA. The Charging Party's argunent

relies on the case of Cvil Service Association v. Cty and

County of San Franci sco, supra, decided under the

Meyers-Mlias-Brown Act, supra, (hereafter MVBA). The Charging
Party interprets that case as holding that the right of
representation guaranteed by MVBA includes the right to counsel
at a hearing to review discipline. But the primary hol di ng of
the court actually was that enployees are entitled to a hearing
either during or within a reasonable tinme after a short-term
sﬁspension from enpl oynment. The court recognized that under
previous California cases enployees were entitled to counsel at
di sciplinary hearings generally. Then, in a separate analysis,
the court found that enployees enjoyed the right to union
representation at these sanme hearings under the MVBA. The
court did not however find that the MVBA in any way guarantees

the right to counsel.
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Simlarly, HEERA guarantees only that enpl oyees may be
represented by enpl oyee organizations and does not.protect t he
right to counsel. Since the Charging Party was represented by
his union representative at the neeting of Cctober 2, the
University cannot be found to have violated his .
representational rights under HEERA on that'date and it is
t herefore unnecessary to resolve the conflicting testinony as
to whet her Kenpland received a copy of the notice of intention
to dism ss on Septenber 27.

It is also found that alleged violations of University
policies do not fall within the purview of HEERA. The PERB is
not the proper forum for the enforcenent of University
regul ations, nor is it the proper forun1fer enforcenent of
rights involving pre-dismssal hearings under Skelly v. State

Per sonnel Board, supra. | ndeed, the record shows that the

parties have been engaged in litigation of these very issues in
another forum® For all of the foregoing reasons, it is
found that the University did not violate section 3571(a) at
the neeting of Cctober 2. |

4. Discharge _
| The Charging Party's final allegation is that his discharge
fromUniversity enploynment was a viol ation of eection 3571(a).

Hs claimis that the discharge was a reprisal inposed upon him

°The record contains exhibits which are identified as
pl eadings in an action in superior court against the University
for wit of mandate.
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for his exercise of protected rights over a period of years and
for his requested union representation on Septenber 6. He also
all eges that the discharge was the result -of the'denial of his
right to counsel on Cctober 2; but since it has been found that
'-HEERA does not protect this righf, it is unhecessary to |

consider this additional claim )

Si nce section 3571(a) is identicaf to section 3543.5(a) of
EERA,'it 'S apprdpriate to apply here the test pronul gated by
the PERB for alleged violations of the latter section. That

test was set forth in Carlsbad Unified School District

- (1/30/79) PERB Decision No. 89 as follows:

1. Asingle test shall be applicable in all
instances in which violations of section
3543.5 (a) are alleged;

2. \Were the Charging Party establishes
that the enployer's conduct tends to or does
result in sone harm to enpl oyee rights
granted under the EERA a prima facie case
shal | be deenmed to exist;

3. VWhere the harmto enployees' rights is
slight, and the enployer offers
justification based on operational
necessity, the conpeting interest of the
enpl oyer and the rights of the enpl oyees
wi Il be balanced and the charge resol ved
accordi ngly;

4. \Where the harmis inherently destructive
of enployee rights, the enployer's conduct
wi Il be excused only on proof that it was
occasi oned by circunstances beyond the

enpl oyer's control and that no alternative
course of action was avail abl e;

5. Irrespective of the foregoing, a charge
wi |l be sustained where it is shown that the
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enpl oyer would not have engaged in the
conpl ai ned-of conduct but for an unl awf ul
nmotivati on, purpose or intent.

- L4 L] L4 - - - - - - - L] - L] - - - - - L - -

Unl awf ul notivation, purpose or intent is
essentially a state of mnd, a subjective
condition generally known only to the
charged party. Direct and affirmative proof
is not always avail able or possible.
However, follow ng generally accepted |ega
principles, the presence of such unl awful
motivation, purpose or intent nmay be
established by inference fromthe entire
record.

The nost difficult prong df this test for the Charging
Party to satisfy is the fifth, which requires a show ng of
notive or intent. The NLRB has recently pronulgated a

causation test for notivation cases in Wight Line and

Lanoureux (1980) 251 NLRB No. 150 [105 LRRM 1169] as foll ows:

Thus, for the reasons set forth above, we
shall henceforth enploy the follow ng
-causation test in all cases alleging
vi ol ations of Section 8(a)(3) or violations
of Section 8(a)(1l) turning on enployer
motivation. First, we shall require that
the CGeneral Counsel nmake a prima facie
showi ng sufficient to support tThe 1Tnference
that protected conduct was a "notivating
factor” in the enployer's decision. Once
this is established, the burden will shift .
to the enployer to denonstrate that the sane
action would have taken place even in the
absence of the protected conduct.

It is concluded that the Wight Line test is appropriate

for deciding m xed notive cases under section 3571(a) where the

issue is whether the enployer would have engaged in the

cdnplained-of'conduct "but for" an unlawful notivation,
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purpose, or intent. To hold that a violation of section
3571(a) occurs when the enployer's conduct was "in part”
notivated by an unlawful purpose or intent woul d pl ace an

enpl oyee in a better position as a result of the exercise of a
ri ght guaranteed by HEERA than he woul d have occupi ed had he

done nothing. While a borderline or marginal enployee shoUId

not be disciplined because of the exercise of rights guaranteed
by HEERA, that sane enpl oyee should not be able, by engaging in
protected activity, to prevent his enployer from assessing his

performance record and reaching a decision on the basis of thaf

record. Furthernore, the Wight Line test represents a

recognition of the practical reality that the enployer is the
party with the best access to proof of its notivation. This

fact is underscored by the lack of discovery nmechani sns under
HEERA af forded to charging parties from which they may

i nvestigate the enployer's notivation.

Applying this test to the discharge of Donald Kenpland, it
is concluded that the Charging Party has not made a prima facie
showi ng sufficient to support the inference that his general
hi story of organi zational activity was a notivating factor in
the University's decision. The record shows that the Charging
Party's superiors were concerned with the anmount of tinme he was
spending in activities unrelated to his job and with his
failure to give advance notice of his absences from the

wor kpl ace. The record does not show that they were concerned
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about the particular activities in which the Charging Party was
engaged during that tine.

However, there is satisfactory evidence to support the
inference that the Charging Party's request for union |
representation on Septenber 6 was a partial notivating factor
in the Univérsity's decision. When the Charging Party appeared
with his union representative,. the Department chairman becanme
upset and stood in the office doorway to prevent the
representative's entry. It is also clear that the chairmn was
upset by the Charging Party's previous request for union
representation on June 29, and that that request was a part of
the "insubordination" for which the Charging Party was

suspended. °

Follow ng the Wight Line causation test the burden now

shifts to the University to show that the di scharge would have
occurred even in the absence of the Charging Party's request

for representation. The record discloses that the Charging
Party had a history of |eaving the workplace w thout advance
notice and of delaying the performance of his assigned tasks.
Prior to the Septenber 6 request for representation, Dr. Schane

had sent him several nenos concerning his performnce and had

6Al t hough it has been found that the events of June 29
cannot form the basis of an unfair practice charge, it is
nevert hel ess appropriate to consider them as evidence to shed
[ight on the character of later events which can form the basis
of a charge. Local Lodge 1424 v. NLRB (1960) 362 U.S. 411 [45

LRRM 3212] , Hendrix v. Operating Engrneers, Local 571 (8th Qrt.

1979) 100 LRRM 2707,
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prepared a letter of warning indicating the possibility of
dismssal. Imediately prior to the discharge, the Charging Party
was absent w thout approved |eave for three days at the beginning
of the fall quarter. Under these facts, it is concluded that the
University has adequately nmet its burden and that the Charging
Party woul d have been discharged even in the absence of his request

for representation

It is still necessary, however, to examne the University's
conduct in this case and any resulting harmto enployee rights
in the light of whether there is "slight harmf or "inherently
destructive harnt under the Carlsbad test. It is concluded
that the University's conduct tends to or does result in
"slight harm to enployee rights since,.as concl uded above, the
University was notivated in part by the?Charging Party's
protected request for representation. However, the
University's conduct does not rise to the level of "inherently
destructive harnt because it is not conduct which "carries with
it unavoi dabl e consequences which the enployer not only foresaw

but which he nust have intended." NLRB v. Great Dane Trail ers,

(1967) 388 U.S. 26 [65 LRRM 2465], NLRB v. Erie Resistor

———

| nc
Corp. (1963) 373 U.S. 221 [53 LRRM2121].

Under the "slight harn prong of the Carlsbad test, a
bal ance nust be struck betmeen enpl oyee rights and the
University's business justification. Under the facts of this
case, it is found that the University's operational necessity
out wei ghs the slight harmto enpl oyees' representational
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rights. The University discharged an enpl oyee who had
performed unsatisfactorily at various tinmes, had been
repeat edly absent w thout giving advance notice, and had
received informal nenps and a formal letter of warning which
 nade hi m aware that he needed to inprove. It is.therefdre |
concluded that the University's discharge of the Charging Party
did not violate section 3571(a) and that the charge shoul d
éccordingly be di sm ssed.
REMEDY
Section 3563.3 provides that:

The board shall have the power to issue a
deci sion and order directing an offending
party to cease and desist fromthe unfair
practice and to take such affirmative
action, including, but not limted to, the
rei nstatenment of enployees with or wthout
back pay, as will effectuate the policies of
this chapter.

In this case, the University violated section 3571(a) by
denying an enployee the right to be represented upon request by
an enpl oyee organi zation at a confrontation with his departnent
chai rman and others involving a significant potential inpact on
his enployment relationship with the University. In Kraft

" Foods, Inc. (1980) 105 LRRM 1233, the NLRB concluded that there

had been no showi ng of a nexus between an enpl oyee's request
for union representation and his eventual discipline and that
accordingly although the denial of representation was w ongful,

the evidence denonstrated that the enployer's decision to
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di scipline was not based upon any information obtained at the
unlawful interview. The NLRB therefore limted the remedy in
that case to a cease and desist order. Having concluded in
this case that Kenpland would have been discharged even in the
absence of his request for representation and no evidence
appearing in the record that the University's decision to

di scharge M. Kenpland was based upon any information obtained
at the said neeting, it is concluded that an.appropriate r emedy
inthis case is to order the University to cease and desi st
from denyi ng union representation when requested under facts
simlar to those at hand.

It is also appropriate that the University be required to
post a notice incorporating the terns of the order. The notice
shoul d be subscribed by an authorized agent of the University
indicating that it will conply with the terns thereof. The
notice shall not be reduced in size. Posting such a notice
wi |l provide enployees with notice that the University has
acted in an unlawful manner and is being required to cease and
desist fromthis activity. It effectuates the purposes of
HEERA t hat enpl oyees be inforned of the resolution of the
controversy and the District's readiness to conply with the

ordered renedy. See Placerville Union School District

- (9/18/78) PERB Decision No. 69. In Pandol and Sons v. ALRB and

UFW (1979) 88 Cal . App. 3d 580, the California District Court of
Appeal approved a posting requirement. The U. S. Suprene Court
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approved a simlar posting requirenment in NLRB v. Express

Publ i shing Co. (1941) 312 U.S. 426 [8 LRRM 415] .
| PROPOSED _ORDER

Based on the foregoing findings of fact and concl usi ons of

law and the entire record in this case, it is hereby ordered
t hat : | |

. The Regents of the University of California, its
representatives and agent s shalf: |
A. CEASE AND DESIST FROM:
Refusing or failing to accede to the request of
enpl oyees to be represented by an enpl oyee organi zation at a
néeting-held by the University“io di scuss a performance
eval uati on which contains a warning that unfesé i nprovenment in
performance is made the enpl oyee wi || be disciplined.
B. TAKE THE FOLLOW NG AFFI RVATI VE ACTION WHICH | S
DESI GNED TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THE HI GHER
EDUCATI ON EMPLOYER- EMPLOYEE RELATI ONS ACT:
1. Wthin fifteen (15 calendar days after this debision
becones final, prepare and post a copy of the Notice to
Enpl oyees attached as an appendi x hereto, for thirty (30)
wor kdays at its San Diego canpus in conspicuous places
at the locations where notices to enployees are customarily
posted. It nmust not be reduced in size, and reasonable st eps
shoul d be taken to see that it is not defaced, altered, or

covered by any -materi al;
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2. Wthin twenty (20) workdays from service of the fina
deci sion herein, notify the Los Angel es Regional Director of
the Public Enploynent Relations Board, in witing, of the steps
the enployer has taken to conply with the terns of this ORDER
Continue to report in witing to the regional director
periodically thereafter as directed. All reports to the
regional director shall be served concurrently on the charging

party herein.

1. For the reasons discussed in the foregoing opinion, all
other allegations included in unfair practice charge LA-CE-13-H
are hereby DI SM SSED

Pursuant to California Adm nistrative Code, title 8 part II1,
section 32305, this Proposed Decision and Order shall becone fina
on August 25, 1981 unless a party files a tinely statenent of
exceptions within twenty (20) cal endar days follow ng the date of
service of the decision. Such statenent of exceptions and
supporting brief nust be actually received by the executive
assistant to the Board at the headquarters office in Sacranento
before the close of business (5:00 p.m) on August 25, 1981 in
order to be tinely filed. (See California Adm nistrative Code,
title 8, part 111, section 32135.) Any statenent of exceptions and
supporting brief nmust be served concurrently with its filing upon

each party to this proceeding. Proof of service shall be filed:
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with the Board itself. (See Adm nistrative Code, title 8,
part 111, sections 32300 and 32305, as anended.)
Dat ed August 5, 1981

Kenneth A. Perea
Hearing Oficer

31



APPENDI X

NOTI CE° TO EMPLOYEES
POSTED BY ORDER OF THE PUBLIC
EMPLOYMENT RELATI ONS BOARD
An Agency of the State of California

After a hearing in Unfair Practice Case No. LA-CE-13-H, -as
amended, Donald E. Kenpland v. Regents of the University of
California, in which all parties had the right to participate,
it has been found that the Regents of the University of
California, violated Governnent Code section 3571(a).

As a result of this conduct, we have been ordered to posf
this Notice, and will abide by the followng. W wll:

1. CEASE AND DESI ST FROM refusing or failing to accede to
the request of enployees to be represented by an enpl oyee
organi zation at neetings held by the University to discuss a
performance eval uation which contains a warning that unless

i mprovenent in performance is nmade the enployee will be

di sci pli ned.

DATED: | University of California, San Diego
By

(Aut hori zed Representative)

THIS I'S AN OFFI Cl AL NOTI CE. I T MUST REMAI N POSTED FOR THI RTY (30)
WORKDAYS FROM THE DATE OF POSTI NG AND MUST NOT BE REDUCED I N SIZE,
DEFACED, ALTERED OR COVERED BY ANY MATERI AL.



